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Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting
DRAFT

August 27, 2008

Present:
Hermann Arndt, Chairman

Guests:  Jack Centner

                        Tom Brahm                                                      Mr.& Mrs.Ted Fisher


            Stan Handelman (arrived 8:00 P.M.)               Larry Hubler



Ken Hanvey



Jim Hicks



Joe Polimeni

Absent:
Scott Wohlschlegel

The regular August meeting of the South Bristol Zoning Board of Appeals was called to order at 7:30 P.M. followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.  All board members were present with the exception of Stan Handelman (arrived late) and Scott Wohlschlegel.

Chairman Arndt welcomed everyone.  He explained that the ZBA was a quasi-judicial board so the board was required to go through some various steps that might seem laborious but Mr. Arndt said it was something the board had to do.

Chairman Arndt requested that the board secretary take attendance.  She did so as follows:  Ken Hanvey-present; Joe Polimeni-present; Tom Brahm-present; Stan Handelman-absent; Jim Hicks-present and Hermann Arndt-present.

Chairman Arndt then discussed the July 7, 2008 ZBA meeting minutes for the Ketmar Development variance requests.  He noted that he had prepared a “Meeting Transcript Correction” to act as an addendum to the meeting transcript that was prepared by a professional stenographer.  Mr. Arndt explained that the board secretary had discovered that the stenographer had not indicated the vote of each board member in the transcript with regard to each motion to approve or disapprove each of the eight variance requests.  Chairman Arndt pointed out that NYS Law indicates in Section 267-a(1) that:  “Such board of appeals shall keep minutes of its proceedings, showing the vote of each member upon every question, or if absent or failing to vote, indicating such fact, and shall also keep records of its examinations and other official actions.”  Mr. Arndt said what had happened was that the stenographer, when a vote was taken on each of the eight variance requests, had just typed “a roll call vote was taken” without being specific as to each board member’s vote.  Chairman Arndt said the stenographer, however, had indicated that the result of the each roll call vote was in the affirmative.  Mr. Arndt then went over the “Meeting Transcript Addendum” in detail with the board.  He then requested that if the board was okay with the Addendum, they make it part of the July 7, 2008 meeting minutes to serve the purpose of indicating the voting pattern of the board members on each of the eight applications for Ketmar Development hearing.  Mr. Arndt called for a roll call vote from the board members who were present at the July 7, 2008 meeting and who cast a vote to attest to the voting pattern indicated in the Addendum.  The board secretary took a roll call vote as follows:  Ken Hanvey-Aye; Joe Polimeni-Aye; Tom Brahm-Aye; Stan Handelman-Absent; and Hermann Arndt-Aye.  Chairman Arndt then made a motion that the board approve the July 7, 2008 minutes as transcribed with the Addendum.  Ken Hanvey seconded the motion.  There was no further discussion.  All in favor-Aye (All)

Chairman Arndt next called for a motion to approve the July 23, 2008 ZBA minutes as written.  Ken Hanvey made said motion which was seconded by Tom Brahm.  Note: Tom Brahm, Ken Hanvey and Joe Polimeni were the only board members who voted regarding approval of the July 23, 2008 minutes as all other board members were not present at that meeting.  Mr. Brahm, Mr. Hanvey and Mr. Polimeni all voted “Aye”.
Chairman Arndt next relayed the Rules of Order.  He explained that basically what happens is the applicant presents their case, in terms of what they want to do and why they want to do it.  Mr. Arndt said that then the board would hear the CEO who will tell the board what section of town law that the applicant desires a variance from in order to be able to build the garage. Mr. Arndt said that the board then asks questions, gives visitation reports, takes other testimony, and determines the SEQR status (State Environmental Quality Review Act) which the board is required to do.  He said the board would open the public hearing so that anyone desiring to speak on the application could be heard.  Mr. Arndt said that then the board would close the public hearing which would be followed by a discussion and debate period.  He said the board would then come up with a set of findings and then vote to either approve or deny the application.

Old Business

There was no old business.

New Business

PUBLIC HEARING-FISHER-REQUEST FOR VARIANCE-Discussion on the Fisher application began at 7:45 P.M.

The Code Enforcement Officer, Jack Centner, then said he wished to make a point of clarification.  He apologized to the board that he did not make a site visit.  He then requested that the board look at the site plan submitted with the application.  Jack said that if the board would look on the survey map they would see the blocked area representing the garage.  Jack said he had scaled that and it should be 25 feet to the road right-of-way as shown there.

Chairman Arndt asked if it was 25 feet to the proposed garage.  Mr. Centner said it was to the 33 foot road right-of-way.  Jack said that he may have been wrong about how many rods the road was but that he was going to take care of that Monday when he could get with Larry Duel.  Jack said he would get Larry to clarify it, but it is shown on the map in his office that it is 33 feet.

Mr. Arndt said the problem gets to be that on the map submitted to the board  the 25 foot from the proposed garage goes to the edge of the road, not to the road right-of-way.

Mr. Centner said that was incorrect due to his error.  Chairman Arndt then asked if what Jack was saying was that the 25 foot is to the road right-of-way.  Jack said that was correct.  Mr. Arndt said that it was a little unusual.  Chairman Arndt also pointed out that if the application was approved and it is a 4-rod road and half of that is 33 feet, they were going to be shy because Jack used 49.5 instead of 66 feet.  Mr. Centner said he scaled it and the only thing that would do, if Larry ended up saying it is a 4-rod road, is make it  closer.  Mr. Arndt said that would be the worst case scenario.  Mr. Centner disagreed and said it would be the best case scenario.

Ken Hanvey then said he thought what Jack was saying is that originally he used half of the 49 ½ feet and if the board were to use 33 feet and give him a variance it would be in the applicant’s  favor.

Chairman Arndt next read the Legal Notice as published.

Chairman Arndt:
Mr. Fisher, if you would please, state your case.

Mr. Fisher;

I guess my case is that I just don’t have any place else to put it. If I could move it back any I would but, because of the layout of the property with a drop off to the back on the east side and the fact that the south side has the leach fields, basically the only place to put a garage is that one spot.  Anywhere else I put it would move it closer to the road.  Do you see what I am saying?

We need the garage because we need the room and it would be nice to get the vehicles out of the weather in the winter.  We just have a little double wide so it is a space issue and I guess you could say it is really a necessity.

Mr. Arndt:

Any questions of Mr. Fisher?  So your septic system is on the south side?

Mr. Fisher:

Yes.  It banks up on that little knoll and the leach fields are down below there.

Mr. Arndt:

I was there earlier today.  Any other questions of Mr. Fisher?  (None)  Thank you.  Jack, your reasons for turning down his request?

Mr. Centner:

He wants to build a two-car garage with a 25 foot front setback where 50 feet is required.

Mr. Arndt:

Just to cement that, you will check on that Monday morning?

Mr. Centner:

I’ll take care of that on Monday.

Mr. Arndt:

Okay, very good. Are there any more questions of Jack?

Mr. Hanvey:

Do you happen to have a measurement from the existing center line to the front of where he wants to build?

Mr. Centner:

No, and, again, I apologize.  He had good pictures when he came in and we were very busy in the office and I took a look at it and discovered that I could scale his site plan so that is what I did this time.  It won’t happen again.

Mr. Arndt:

As long as we know that whatever determination this board comes up with it will apply to the official right-of-way.  Okay, visitation reports and other testimony?  I was there today.  Your radio was playing and your dog was barking at me.  I did get out and I can verify what Mr. Fisher stated.  There is a severe drop off behind the shed and just behind the propane tank.  It does seem like the optimum location to put a structure if you are going to put a structure in.  Any other visitation reports?

Mr. Hanvey:

I was out there and I saw basically the same thing you did.  It does fall off and he does have problems on the other side with the leach fields and stuff like that.

Mr. Brahm:

I totally agree with what you are saying.  Jim and I were up there just a few minutes ago.

Mr. Arndt:

Just for the record, Stan, you just got here, obviously, and we are about half way through this.  So, if you are okay with it, I would like to make Jim Hicks, Alternate #1, a voting member and you would be an observer in this case.

Mr. Handelman:
That’s okay.

Mr. Arndt:

Stan, obviously, you can partake in the conversation.

Mr. Handelman:
I appreciate that.

Mr. Arndt:

Thank you, Stan.  Next, is the SEQR status.

Mr. Hanvey:

Section 617.5(c)(12), granting of individual setback and lot line variances are Type II actions and require no further review.

Mr. Arndt:

I will accept that as Finding #1 if somebody will make a motion.

Mr. Brahm:

I move we make that Finding #1.

Mr. Polimeni:

I will second that.

Mr. Arndt:

Motion has been made and seconded.  Is there any discussion?  (None)  All in favor, signify by saying “Aye”.  All – Aye  Opposed:  No One (Stan Handelman not participating)  

I will now open the Public Hearing  (Time:  8:05 P.M.)  Is there anyone who wishes to speak on this application?  I don’t know who you are, sir.  

Mr. Hubler:

I am just observing.

Mr. Arndt:

Very good.  Then I will close the public hearing.  (Time:  8:06 P.M.)  I don’t have any public or municipal officers’ documentation.  Nothing came in, right on this case?

Board Secretary:
Nothing.

Mr. Arndt:

We shall now open our ZBA discussion and debate period.  This is kind of a free-form cross talk among the board members.  We discuss openly what we think we saw and heard.  Does anybody want to venture some opinions during our discussion period?

Mr. Hanvey:

It is what it is.  He is not trying to get away with anything.  The terrain really falls off.  You could make him buy $15,000 worth of structural steel and cantilever the garage off the back of the cliff.  He really has no other options.

Mr. Arndt:

It does seem like a very pristine rural-type area.  I think what you are doing is kind of indicative of other structures around the general area.  You are right on the corner of South Bristol/Naples.  You are about as far away as you can get.  Okay, let’s determine some findings, folks.  Does anybody want to come up with one?  I’ll do the one that is always difficult for an area variance.  It speaks to the case as to whether it is self-induced or self-created.  I propose the following finding:  “The desire to construct this proposed garage is self-created.  In terms of an alternative, the placement of this structure any other place on the property would create a financial hardship.”  Do I hear a motion to accept that as Finding #2?

Mr. Hanvey:

I’ll make a motion to accept that.

Mr. Brahm:

I’ll second it.

Mr. Arndt:

Any discussion?  (None)  All in favor, signify by saying “Aye”.    Aye – All.  Opposed:  No One  (Stan Handelman not participating)  

I will propose another finding in terms of the substantiality.  “The requested variance of 25 feet where 50 feet is required is substantial in that 50 percent relief is sought.”  

Mr. Hanvey:

I will make a motion to accept that.

Mr. Arndt:

Ken made a motion to accept.

Mr. Brahm:

I’ll second that.

Mr. Arndt:

Seconded by Tom.  Any discussion?  (None)  All in favor, signify by saying “Aye”.  Aye – All.  Opposed:  No One.  (Stan Handelman not participating)  Somebody else?

Mr. Hanvey:

I would like to have it noted that there was no public dissention at this meeting.

Mr. Arndt:

All the neighbors were notified, right?

Board Secretary:
Yes.

Mr. Arndt:

Anybody want to make a motion to accept that?

Mr. Brahm:

I’ll make the motion.

Mr. Polimeni:

I’ll second that.

Mr. Arndt:

Discussion?  (None)  All in favor, signify by saying “Aye”.  All – Aye.  Opposed:  No One.  (Stan Handelman not participating)

I do have a couple more here.  “This proposed garage will not negatively effect the physical or environmental conditions in the neighborhood.”  

Mr. Brahm:

I will make the motion to accept that as Finding #5.

Mr. Arndt:

Is there a second?

Mr. Polimeni:

Second.

Mr. Arndt:

Seconded by Joe.  Discussion?  (None)  All in favor, signify by saying “Aye”.  All – Aye.  Opposed – No One.  (Stan Handelman not participating)

Mr. Hanvey:

“The garage is in keeping with the character of the area.  There are other structures in the area located near the road.”

Mr. Brahm:

I will make the motion to make that another finding.

Mr. Arndt:

Is there a second?

Mr. Polimeni:

I’ll second it.

Mr. Arndt:

Seconded by Joe.  Discussion?  (None)  All in favor, signify by saying “Aye”.  All – Aye.  Opposed – No One.  (Stan Handelman not participating)

Any other findings?  (None)  I will petition the board for a motion to approve or deny the applicant’s request.  I will take a shot at it.  “I move that we approve the applicant’s request for a setback variance of 25 feet, meaning that the garage structure can be no closer than 25 feet to the road right-of-way.”  Whatever the right of way is, it can’t be any closer than 25 feet.  That nails it down.

Mr. Polimeni:

I’ll second that motion.

Mr. Arndt:

Any discussion?  (None)  




Roll call vote:





Ken Hanvey

- Aye





Jim Hicks (Alt. #1)
- Aye





Tom Brahm

- Aye





Hermann Arndt
- Aye





Joe Polimeni

- Aye





Stan Handelman
- (Not Voting)

Mr. Arndt:

Any conditions?  I would like to float a condition which is that “no center drain shall be installed unless affixed with an oil separator”.  I would like to make that a condition.  The reason for that is exactly what you articulated.  You are over a cliff and there is a watershed and sometimes people wash cars in there and the effluent goes into the watershed.

Mr. Hanvey:

Is that currently a requirement?

Mr. Centner:

It is one of those situations where George Barden does not like to see drains go in within the watershed.

Mr. Hanvey:

I guess what I am getting at is if it is already a requirement we do not need to make that a condition.

Mr. Centner:

If that was something that the homeowner has indicated they want to have, then generally the procedure would be to contact George Barden who would probably make that very same restriction.

Mr. Hanvey:

You don’t have a code that says that they cannot put a drain in?

Mr. Centner:

No. 

Mr. Arndt:

Therefore, I am imposing this condition.

Mr. Centner:

Do you want to remove the word “center” because it is possible to pitch the floor in different directions?

Mr. Arndt:

Good point.  Let’s say “any drain”.

Mr. Brahm:

I will make the motion to accept that as a condition.

Mr. Arndt:

Second?

Mr. Polimeni:

Second.

Mr. Arndt:

Seconded by Joe.  All in favor, signify by saying “Aye”.  All – Aye.  Opposed:  No One.  (Stan Handelman not participating)

Congratulations, you have your variance.

Discussion on the Fisher application ended at 8:20 P. M.

OTHER BUSINESS TO COME BEFORE THE BOARD

Haley Communication-The board secretary said that she wanted the board to know that following the ZBA’s July 7, 2008 Ketmar hearing, Tom Haley from the DEC in Avon had sent Supervisor Marshall an email within which he had said:  “I thought your folks did a very nice job running the meeting last night.”
Swett Letter and Response-Chairman Arndt informed the board that following the July 7, 2008 Ketmar hearing, the ZBA had received a letter from a Mrs. Swett urging that the town develop steep slope regulations.  Mr. Arndt said that he had sent a reply back to Mrs. Swett indicating that the town shares her concerns on how to best protect the environment on and around the lake.  He said he also advised Mrs. Swett that the Planning Board is currently working on developing steep slope regulations for the town.
There being no other business to come before the board, Chairman Arndt called for a motion to adjourn.  Stan Handelman made said motion which was seconded by Tom Brahm.  The motion was unanimously accepted and the meeting adjourned at 8:30 P.M.







Respectfully submitted,







Debra Minute







Recording Secretary
